HISTORIC AND DESIGN REVIEW COMMISSION

December 6, 2023
HDRC CASE NO: 2023-456
ADDRESS: 914 W Mulberry Ave
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: NCB 1810 BLK 28 LOTS 17 & 18 & W 12.5 FT OF 19
ZONING: R-6
CITY COUNCIL DIST.: 1
APPLICANT: Vincent P. & Lilly Ann Salinas
OWNER: Vincent P. & Lilly Ann Salinas
TYPE OF WORK: Historic Landmark Designation
CASE MANAGER: Charles Gentry

REQUEST: The applicant is requesting a Historic Landmark Designation for 914 West Mulberry Avenue.

APPLICABLE CITATIONS:
Unified Development Code Sec. 35-606. - Designation Process for Historic Landmarks.

a.

Authority. Requests for landmark designation may only be made by or with the concurrence of the
property owner or by City Council. Such landmarks shall bear the words "historic, landmark" (HL) in
their zoning designation. In instances where a property owner does not consent to the landmark
designation, the historic preservation officer shall request a resolution from city council to proceed with
the designation process prior to any hearing regarding the designation by the historic and design review
commission or zoning commission. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a request for landmark designation
may be made and approved by the city council. Additionally, requests for designation by a property
owner shall be made on a form obtained from the city historic preservation officer through the office of
historic preservation. Completed request forms shall be returned to the office of historic preservation for
processing. All buildings, objects, sites, structures, or clusters heretofore designated by the city council
as historic landmarks under any pre-existing ordinance of the City of San Antonio shall be accorded the
protection of properties designated historic landmarks under this chapter and shall continue to bear the
words "historic, exceptional" (HE) or "historic, significant" (HS) in their zoning designation.

Initiation.

1. Any person, the historic and design review commission, zoning commission, the historic
preservation officer, or the city council may initiate a request for review of historic significance or
evaluation for eligibility for historic landmark designation. Owner consent to initiate historic
landmark designation shall be required unless a city council resolution to proceed with the
designation has been approved. Requests for historic landmark designation may be requested by or
with verified written consent of a property owner and shall be made on a form obtained from the
city historic preservation officer. Required application materials are listed in section 35-B129 of this
chapter. Completed request forms shall be returned to the office of historic preservation for
processing. Additionally, owners may submit with the application a written description and
photographs or other visual material of any buildings or structures that they wish to be considered
for designation as non-contributing to the historic landmark.

2. Requests made by a person who does not represent the property owner may be made by submitting a
Request for Review of Historic Significance. Required application materials are listed in section 35-
B129 of this chapter. Completed request forms shall be returned to the office of historic preservation
for processing. Such request does not initiate the historic designation process or automatically result
in interim controls. All applications shall be evaluated by the historic preservation officer and may
be referred to the Historic and Design Review Commission for a Finding of Historic Significance in
accordance with this section.

Decision. A Finding of Historic Significance may be approved by the Historic Preservation Officer or

by the historic and design review commission by a majority vote of members present. If approved, the

Historic Preservation Officer will seek concurrence from the property owner. Property owners may

verify or withdraw consent at any time during the designation process.

1. All requests for a change in zoning to include a historic zoning overlay having either written,



verified owner consent or resolution by City Council to proceed with the historic landmark
designation will be processed in accordance with 35-421.

2. If the subject property owner does not consent to the proposed designation, the Historic
Preservation Officer shall request City Council resolution to initiate historic landmark
designation.

3. To designate a historic landmark, the city shall obtain consent to the designation by the owner of
the property or approval of designation by three-fourths (%) vote of the Historic and Design
Review Commission recommendmg the designation and a three-fourths (%) vote by the City
Council. If the property is owned by an organization that is a religious organization under Section
11.20, Tax Code, the property may be designated as a historic landmark only if the organization
consents to the designation.

4. Upon passage of any ordinance designating a historic landmark, or removing the designation of
historic, the city clerk shall send notice of the fact by mail to the owner or owners of affected

property.

Unified Development Code Sec. 35-607. — Designation Criteria for Historic Districts and Landmarks.

a. Process for Considering Designation of Historic Districts and Landmarks. Historic districts and
landmarks shall be evaluated for designation using the criteria listed in subsection (b). In order to be
eligible for historic landmark designation, properties shall meet at least three (3) of the criteria listed.
Historic districts shall consist of at least two (2) or more structures within a legally defined boundary
that meet at least three (3) of the criteria. Additionally, all designated landmarks and districts shall
demonstrate clear delineation of the legal boundaries of such designated resources.

b. Criteria for Evaluation.

3. Its identification with a person or persons who significantly contributed to the development of
the community, county, state, or nation;

8. Its historical, architectural, or cultural integrity of location, design, materials, and
workmanship;

13. It bears an important and significant relationship to other distinctive structures, sites, or areas,
either as an important collection of properties or architectural style or craftsmanship with few
intrusions, or by contributing to the overall character of the area according to the plan based on
architectural, historic, or cultural motif.

FINDINGS:
a. The request for landmark designation was initiated by the property owner.

b. HISTORIC CONTEXT: The property at 914 West Mulberry Avenue is a two-story Prairie style Four-
Square brick residence located in the Beacon Hill Area neighborhood conservation district (NCD-5) of
City Council District 1. Vincent & Lilly Salinas currently own the property. Beacon Hill evolved
during San Antonio’s first and greatest expansion, which began in the 1850s and continued with few
interruptions until the Great Depression. The neighborhood grew around the San Antonio Street
Railway Trolley lines that originally provided access to historic San Pedro Springs Park. The subject
property was built circa 1918 for W.A. & Willie W. Ellis, who purchased the deed for the parcel in
1913 from Charles and Madge Venable. The address first appeared in the 1918 City Directory, and at
that time, William Alvin Ellis (1872—-1948) was the principal for the Ellis Brokerage Company. His
first wife died that year, and Ellis married his second wife, Clara Mae Ellis (formerly Boldt) in 1923. A
native of Louisiana, Missouri, Ellis had lived in San Antonio for 36 years. He was a life member of San
Antonio Lodge 1070, A.F.&A.M., a 33rd degree member of the Scottish Rite, and a member of Alzafar
Temple, San Antonio Chapter 381. Clara Ellis was actively involved with the San Antonio Women’s
Club. In the 1929 City Directory, the address was listed as the home of William M. Marvin, an agent
for the Brown Cracker & Candy Company, and his wife Florence. In the 1931 City Directory, Marvin
is listed as the Vice President of the San Antonio Broom Factory, which was one of the top local
manufacturers and employers. The Marvins resided at the property until 1937, at least. Charles
Graebner (1861-1932) purchased the deed to the property in 1928, and his widow sold the property to
their daughter-in-law in 1939. A native San Antonian, Graebner was a pioneer businessman and civic
leader in San Antonio and was active in real estate development. He served as president of the Ducrier



Candy Manufacturing company, former president of the San Antonio Chamber of Commerce, former
president and life member of the San Antonio Museum Association, and a former president of the San
Antonio Manufacturers' Association. In 1919, Graebner donated the grounds of the Barclay elementary
school (1112 S. Zarzamora St., now the Ramiro P. Estrada Achievement Center). In the early 1930s, he
donated evergreens for the new elementary school at 530 Hoover Avenue, and in January 1932 the
SAISD Board named it Charles Graebner Elementary School in his honor. He was also the brother of
Mrs. Augusta Kronkosky, wife of Albert Kronkosky, who served as head of the Gebhardt Chili Powder
Company and founded the San Antonio Drug Company. Graebner died in November 1932 at his
country home near Boerne at the age of 71 and was buried in Knights Of Pythias Cemetery. His son,
Edward Alexander Graebner (1887-1924) married Bertha Mae Sulfer on 9 July 1907, in St. Joseph
Township, Michigan. He died on 13 September 1924, in San Antonio, at the age of 37, and was buried
in Knights Of Pythias Cemetery. Bertha Mae Graebner (Sulfer) (1888-1986) resided at 914 West
Mulberry Avenue from 1940 to 1952 (or later). By 1955, Graebner resided next door at 918 West
Mulberry Avenue, and she was listed in the City Directory as the pastor of "The Christ Way Chapel" at
that same address.

SITE CONTEXT: The subject property is a north-facing house, situated near the middle of a block
bound to the north by W Mulberry Ave, the east by Blanco Rd, the south by W Huisache Ave, and the
west by Grant Ave. The block includes Neoclassical, Craftsman, and Spanish Eclectic, with a few
examples of more modern infill. A divorced sidewalk runs through large front yards; driveways appear
as either full-width concrete or ribbon drives. The house is on a large lot and has an inground kidney-
shaped pool on the east side of the parcel. The backyard is enclosed by a wooden privacy fence with a
swinging gate at the end of the straight concrete driveway.

. ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION: The subject property is a two-story Prairie style Four-Square
residence constructed of red brick with a rectangular plan, hipped roof, widely overhanging boxed
eaves, a brick chimney, and a one-story, full-fagade porch supported by square brick columns. It has a
composite shingle roof with a gabled dormer on the primary facade. The dormer features a central
arched window with stained glass, flanked by two smaller square windows. The front porch entry is
asymmetrical, with three concrete steps on the right side flanked by low, rectangular brick piers. The
porch is covered by wooden planks. The front door is wooden with a single, three-quarter length glass
pane, with a rectangular transom and sidelights. The chimney is located on the east side of the
structure. Windows are one-over-one wood windows with 9-over-one wood screens. There is a
decorative stained glass clerestory window in the center of the lower story of the east facade. The rear
entry features French doors with single glass panes. The back porch is a raised wooden deck with four
steps, covered by a shed roof supported by square wooden columns and railing. There is a casita or
pool house near the southeast corner of the lot with a symmetrical fagade and hipped roof with
composite shingles.

EVALUATION: In order to be eligible for historic landmark designation, properties shall meet at least
three (3) of the 16 criteria listed. The applicant submitted that the property meets the following criteria,
consistent with UDC sec. 35-607(b):

3. Its identification with a person or persons who significantly contributed to the development
of the community, county, state, or nation; for its association with the Ellis, Marvin, and Graebner

families.

8. Its historical, architectural, or cultural integrity of location, design, materials, and
workmanship; as an example of the Prairie style Four-Square brick residence.

13. It bears an important and significant relationship to other distinctive structures, sites, or
areas, either as an important collection of properties or architectural style or craftsmanship
with few intrusions, or by contributing to the overall character of the area according to the



plan based on architectural, historic, or cultural motif; as one of the earliest homes in the
Beacon Hill neighborhood.

f. The City offers a tax incentive for the substantial rehabilitation of historic properties because historic
landmarks possess cultural and historical value and contribute to the overall quality and character of
the City and its neighborhoods. If historic designation is approved, rehabilitation and restoration work
may be eligible for this incentive. State and Federal tax incentives are also available for properties
listed on the National Register of Historic Places and provide substantial relief for rehabilitation
projects.

g. Ifthe HDRC approves the Historic Landmark Designation, then the recommendation for designation is
submitted to the Zoning Commission. The Zoning Commission will schedule a hearing and then
forward its recommendation to the City Council. City Council has the ultimate authority to approve the
historic designation zoning overlay.

h. Per UDC Sec. 35-608, once the Commission makes a recommendation for designation, property
owners must receive a written approval (a Certificate of Appropriateness) for any exterior work
until the City Council makes their final decision.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of a Historic Landmark Designation of 914 West
Mulberry Avenue based on findings a through e.
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Historic Assessment
Property Address: 914 W Mulberry Ave

1. Application Details

Applicant: Vincent P. & Lilly Ann Salinas
Type: Historic Landmark Designation
Date Received: 8 November 2023

2. Findings

The property at 914 West Mulberry Avenue is a two-story Prairie style Four-Square brick residence
located in the Beacon Hill Area neighborhood conservation district (NCD-5) of City Council District 1.
Vincent & Lilly Salinas currently own the property. Beacon Hill evolved during San Antonio’s first and
greatest expansion, which began in the 1850s and continued with few interruptions until the Great
Depression. The neighborhood grew around the San Antonio Street Railway Trolley lines that originally
provided access to historic San Pedro Springs Park.

The subject property was built circa 1918 for W.A. & Willie W. Ellis, who purchased the deed for the
parcel in 1913 from Charles and Madge Venable. The address first appeared in the 1918 City Directory,
and at that time, William Alvin Ellis (1872—1948) was the principal for the Ellis Brokerage Company.
His first wife died that year, and Ellis married his second wife, Clara Mae Ellis (formerly Boldt) in 1923.
A native of Louisiana, Missouri, Ellis had lived in San Antonio for 36 years. He was a life member of
San Antonio Lodge 1070, A.F.&A .M., a 33rd degree member of the Scottish Rite, and a member of
Alzafar Temple, San Antonio Chapter 381. Clara Ellis was actively involved with the San Antonio
Women’s Club.

In the 1929 City Directory, the address was listed as the home of William M. Marvin, an agent for the
Brown Cracker & Candy Company, and his wife Florence. In the 1931 City Directory, Marvin is listed
as the Vice President of the San Antonio Broom Factory, which was one of the top local manufacturers
and employers. The Marvins resided at the property until 1937, at least.

Charles Graebner (1861-1932) purchased the deed to the property in 1928, and his widow sold the
property to their daughter-in-law in 1939. A native San Antonian, Gracbner was a pioneer business man
and civic leader in San Antonio, and was active in real estate development. He served as president of the
Ducrier Candy Manufacturing company, former president of the San Antonio Chamber of Commerce,
former president and life member of the San Antonio Museum Association, and a former president of the
San Antonio Manufacturers' Association. In 1919, Graebner donated the grounds of the Barclay
elementary school (1112 S. Zarzamora St., now the Ramiro P. Estrada Achievement Center). In the early
1930s, he donated evergreens for the new elementary school at 530 Hoover Avenue, and in January 1932
the SAISD Board named it Charles Graebner Elementary School in his honor. He was also the brother of
Mrs. Augusta Kronkosky, wife of Albert Kronkosky, who served as head of the Gebhardt Chili Powder
Company and founded the San Antonio Drug Company. Graebner died in November 1932 at his country
home near Boerne at the age of 71 and was buried in Knights Of Pythias Cemetery. His son, Edward
Alexander Graebner (1887-1924) married Bertha Mae Sulfer on 9 July 1907, in St. Joseph Township,
Michigan. He died on 13 September 1924, in San Antonio, at the age of 37, and was buried in Knights
Of Pythias Cemetery. Bertha Mae Graebner (Sulfer) (1888-1986) resided at 914 West Mulberry Avenue

100 W. HOUSTON ST., SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78205
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from 1940 to 1952 (or later). By 1955, Graebner resided next door at 918 West Mulberry Avenue, and
she was listed in the City Directory as the pastor of "The Christ Way Chapel" at that same address.

3. Architectural Description

The subject property is a north-facing house, situated near the middle of a block bound to the north by W
Mulberry Ave, the east by Blanco Rd, the south by W Huisache Ave, and the west by Grant Ave. The
block includes Neoclassical, Craftsman, and Spanish Eclectic, with a few examples of more modern
infill. A divorced sidewalk runs through large front yards; driveways appear as either full-width concrete
or ribbon drives. The house is on a large lot and has an inground kidney-shaped pool on the east side of
the parcel. The backyard is enclosed by a wooden privacy fence with a swinging gate at the end of the
straight concrete driveway.

The subject property is a two-story Prairie style Four-Square residence constructed of red brick with a
rectangular plan, hipped roof, widely overhanging boxed eaves, a brick chimney, and a one-story, full-
fagade porch supported by square brick columns. It has a composite shingle roof with a gabled dormer
on the primary facade. The dormer features a central arched window with stained glass, flanked by two
smaller square windows. The front porch entry is asymmetrical, with three concrete steps on the right
side flanked by low, rectangular brick piers. The porch is covered by wooden planks. The front door is
wooden with a single, three-quarter length glass pane, with a rectangular transom and sidelights. The
chimney is located on the east side of the structure. Windows are one-over-one wood windows with 9-
over-one wood screens. There is a decorative stained glass clerestory window in the center of the lower
story of the east fagade. The rear entry features French doors with single glass panes. The back porch is a
raised wooden deck with four steps, covered by a shed roof supported by square wooden columns and
railing. There is a casita or pool house near the southeast corner of the lot with a symmetrical fagade and
hipped roof with a composite shingles.

Character-defining features of 914 West Mulberry Avenue include:
- Spanish Eclectic style with stucco exterior
- Flat roof with castellated parapet and rooftop railing
- Rear accessory dwelling unit (casita) and storage shed

4. Landmark Criteria
The property meets six criteria under UDC 35-607(b):

e 3: Its identification with a person or persons who significantly contributed to the
development of the community, county, state, or nation;

e 8: Its historical, architectural, or cultural integrity of location, design, materials, and
workmanship;

e 13: It bears an important and significant relationship to other distinctive structures, sites,
or areas, either as an important collection of properties or architectural style or
craftsmanship with few intrusions, or by contributing to the overall character of the area
according to the plan based on architectural, historic or cultural motif;

5. Staff Recommendation

100 W. HOUSTON ST., SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78205
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A property must meet at least three of the 16 criteria used to evaluate eligibility for landmark
designation, and this assessment determines that 914 West Mulberry Avenue meets this threshold.
Further research may reveal additional significance associated with this property.

100 W. HOUSTON ST., SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78205
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1. 914 West Mulberry Avenue — Front fagade

100 W. HOUSTON ST., SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78205
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2. 914 West Mulberry Avenue — Right side (West)
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3. 914 West Mulberry Avenue — Left side (East)
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4. 914 West Mulberry Avenue — Rear (South)
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5. 914 West Mulberry Avenue — window detail
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6. Sanborn Map (1931), Vol.1, Sheet 95
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7. San Antonio Light (April 17, 1927), Pg. 21
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8. San Antonio Light (November 09, 1927), pg. 5
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Attractive Brick Home
914 W. Mulberry Avenue.
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ROGERS, HILL & €O, Realtors

9. San Antonio Light (March 18, 1928), pg. 61
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neral services for Wil-
liam A, Ellis will be con-
ducted at 4 p.m. Satuz-
day. |

W. A. Ellis
Rifes Saturday
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A. Ellis, 76, 2703 S, Walters Ave,,
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Antenie Chapter 581,
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Clara Mae FElbs; a daughter,
Mary Blizabeth Bain: two sons,
Frank Hallum Eilis and Cel. W,
Tingley Ellis wha flew from
Stutlgart, Germany, to attend
the services.

\
|
FINAL R1ITES—Fu- ‘
i
|
\
|

10. San Antonio Express (July 17, 1948), pg. 14
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Property for Charles
Graebner,

Loulsvilla Real Estate and De-
velapment Company of Louisville
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daz, March 13, in wan announced
Briurday.

This esrcern, of which In €.
Clark s ewner, handled an awotien
sile here several months azo for w
H. &, Thorman In Olmos Parit Ter-
race. Since that time It has suc-
cesstully held an auction In Absiln.
' In discussing  the  Austin sale
{Clark declared that  the  great
gmount of cash produced hy buvers
featured the auction, Fully thrée-
foartns of the s=ales  were cuash,
with the peaple payving off on the
nroperty instead of walting for fl-
nal papers, ete,

It was clearly demonstrated in
fhe Auerin sale that there Is planty
af pagh availablo for the purchase
af =ood real  estate  aL proper
prices, he wvald.

Ivarhoes Heights s owned by
Chariea Croebner. L0 is siluated
in the Testern asction of Lhe ity
in the vicinity of Our Lads of the
Lake Coliege and Elmendorl Take
and park.

The Sun Antonie Boarg of Fdu-
cation now has under canstruction
an elementary =chocl building on
the property.

Water. lights and gas are avail-
able, while the propecty” |5 sensibly
restriplad,

14. San Antonio Express (March 06, 1932), pg. 27
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St, Anthony Hotel
Ball Room

Fivery Sumiday
Evening ot 8
“n'Cloch

b L L T |

Subjuel:
"Adum snd Ev”

LU

Mrsticnl and By
bollce  Inlerpretntlon
of 1ha Scripturea.

enader

Dr. Bertha Graebner

ALL ATE WELCOMIT

Wd POWA N VT AW

15. San Antonio Light (August 21, 1932), pg. 17
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GRAEBNER [3

f-

{ GNEN HONDR

While funeral services were lield
Tuesday allermpon for  Charles
Grashper, moneer Bsn Antomlo
buslness man ond civie jeader, me-
morinl- serviloes were held in Lwo
San Antonln rohosls.  They were
the Barchap elementary  school)
South Zarzamora And Vera Orig
streels, and the new  Crachoer
scheol, Charlatte and  Hoower
abreelts. '

The grounds of the former were
[ fdonated by Ommctmar, and  the
everpreens ab the latter imziitutien,
which was pamed lm his hopar.
Grrenner dled Sundsy afternson
b his counliy home near Boerie.
e was & patlve San Antonian, and
or mony years wos presldent aof the
< A Duerler Candy Manufoeturlng
Pany, from whieh pesilon he
etlrsd 2y years ago,

He also was former president of
e Fan Antonle chember of caris
rroe, and wes active o real estaie
velapmenb

Byrviving are hls  widew, Mua
meliz Crodboer; a beother, Cus
rzebner: a sister, Mrs.  AMhert
ronkosk®, snd bwo grandehildren,
lrarles A, and Floreniee Graebner.
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MUSEUM ASSOCIATION
PAYS GRAEBNER TRIBLTE

A resalutian in memerinm to Lle
late Charles  Gyachner, fovmer
prpaident and life member of the
sarn Antohio Myderm Assoeiation,
hasd Mheen adopted by the LEsoein-
tlen, it wia innounced MMondng.

The wreszolullon was signed by
Mrs., J K. Brreda, =zssoclation
president;  XMrs., Houslen Brown,
Edwin . Witte and Mes. . W,
MeAlllsber, Graehner whe  died
thisz mtonth was o former president
ol the Jan Antonle Mahufuctulem
Asspejation,

17. San Antonio Express (December 20, 1932), pg. 6

MULBERRY AV wW—Contd 908 Apartments

o Twai ark t 1 HSanca Hen
e R ot 2 McClolland Georgia 8 Mrs

i Vaecant 4 Rankin David L

7 Vacant s
8 Blythe Ann 90; x::":::
90 SRS Aparinwe 9140Howell Orville 1

1 Willlams Al E
20LIvingston Donald J ""%ﬁ:{gm}; g:l;:;l@

3 Vacant ACGriffiths Mae W @

goymaok W B 018 Christ Way Chapel The
% hoant AGracbner Bertha Mrs Rev @)
g Rnyl.lnh\’lrull & eur Rurton Lella M

Shefenberg Ja mwmu Deo V ©
410QHall Allene C ® ‘ocke Emmett B ©
ALACallaghan Mary A © el
11808pencer Herbert 'I'{o&hhuer Cleo B @
418% OMosby Jas L 9362 Rachelor Donald E @)
422 Wolfe Thos A 939 Vacant
4248 Dukes Barbara Mrs 9404Kilgore Jas 8 @
426QForister Pearl N 944ACalvert Cecll H @
4280 DeLorenzo Andres B $470S8ullenberger Wilson W @
rear Vacant Grant av intersects
4300Hugo Ora Mrs @) 10012Cardiel Helen @
1380Heilne Grady D Ig:dg?rﬁke .‘Ii:)sep‘l‘l‘!llo@l} Mrs @

§ 50Collas Gus
Broeden av intersects !ﬂl\hﬂs‘.nrnnul E Francea @

18. San Antonio City Directory (1957), pg. 1298
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	HISTORIC AND DESIGN REVIEW COMMISSION
	REQUEST: The applicant is requesting a Historic Landmark Designation for 914 West Mulberry Avenue.
	APPLICABLE CITATIONS:
	RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of a Historic Landmark Designation of 914 West Mulberry Avenue based on findings a through e.
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